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) CROSS-COMPLAINANTS MICHAEL
Vs, ) JACKSON, MJJ PRODUCTIONS, INC.
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respectfully submut the following trial

brief.
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I
INTRODUCTION

This case is deceptively simple. Stripped to its essentials, it is an accounting case, albeit
one with an overlay of fraud, deception, and self-dealing on the part of plaintiff Marc Schaffel.

To say that Schaffel is an unsavory character would be an understatement. He is a
professional swindler and pornographer with a long history of dishonest, immoral and
manipulative behavior.

Schaffe! maneuvered internationally famous entertainer Michael Jackson into a series of
business arrangements starting in 2001. Schaffel is now claiming that Mr. Jackson owes him
money from those arrangements; Mr. Jackson claims thtat Schaffel, who controlled the bank
accounts into which millions of dollars of Mr. Jackson’s money was placed, owes him money,

’ II
THE NATURE OF THE PARTIES’ RELATIONSHIP

Things began in 2000-2001, when Schaffel convinced Mr. Jackson that Schaffe] was the
right person to help Mr. Jackson produce and release a charity single called “What More Can 1
Give,” from a song written and copyrighted in 1998 by Mr. Jackson. Mr. Schaffel created a -
limited liability company called “F. Marc Schaffel Productions, LLC,” which began doing
business as “Neverland Valley Entertainment” in connection with the charity single and other
Michael Jackson projects. Schaffel was the sole member and manager of F. Marc Schaffel
Productions, LLC/Neverland Valley Entertainment. For convenience, that LLC and its dba will
simply be referred to hereafter as “NVE.” Mr. Schaffel and NVE are the piaintiffs in this case.

The circumstances surrounding the initial financing of NVE are telling. Schaffel
arranged for the trusting Mr. Jackson to borrow $2,000,000 from a factoring company at a high

rate of interest - 48 percent per annum. Schaffel received a commission from the lender, and put

the $2,000,000 into a bank account for NVE. Schaffel arranged things so bothheand Mr. |

Jackson would be signatories on the account. Mr, Jackson, however, never wrote a single check.

Schaffel controlled everything. Schaffel also opened two more accounts for NVE without Mr.

Jackson’s signature.

2
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Over the next three years, Mr. Jackson and/or one or another of his companies, including

R MJJ Productions, Inc. and Fire Mountain Services, Inc., deposited an additional $4.4M into one
3 H or another of the NVE accounts, trusting Schaffel to apply those monies to Mr. Jackson’s
4 projects and/or needs. During that time, Schaffel also deposited in excess of $1,000,000 (all of
5 which had been earned by him as fees or commissions on projects undertaken with Mr. Jackson)
6}l into those accounts. Mr. Jackson, MJJ Productions, and Fire Mountain are the defendants in this
v/ case.
8 It
9 SCHAFFEL’S CLAIM FOR UNPAID COMMISSIONS

10 In 2003, after Martin Bashir’s smear video against Mr. Jackson aired, Jackson aides hired

11 Mr. Schaffel to produce two rebuttal documentary specials “Take 2: The Interview They

15 Wouldn’t Show You” and “Michael Jackson: Private Home Movies.” These were shown

13 domestically on the Fox network as well as internationally. Defendants received a total of

$10,035,252 in gross domestic and foreign proceeds from these documentaries.

1 Mr. Schaffel was generously offered 20 percent of this amount for producing the

e documentaries (i.e., roughly $2M) and was paid ultimately $1,525,000, leaving a shortfail of

16 about $482,000. This claim is the subject of the First Cause of Action in Schaffel’s first

17 amended complaint, although Schaffel contends that the amount he is owed is much higher,

181 about $925,000.

19 The figure of $482,000 is correct. Expert testimony will establish that Schaffel’s

20 $925,000 figure is unsustainable {and inconsistent with Schaffel’s original, and equally

21 unsustainable, figure of $800,000). In addition, Schaffel pleaded in his original complaint that
22 {1) he and defendants had reached an accord and satisfaction in 2003 with respect to this claim;

23 (2) that defendants had partially performed; and (3) that $500,000 was left owing. See

24l Complaint, Para. 19 (alleging that Schaffel agreed with defendants to accept 81,500,000 “in full .

25 satisfaction of the remaining fees owing,” that defendants paid him $1,000,000, and that they

26 failed to pay the final $500,000. That judicial admission (dropped from Schaffel’s first amended

PL, complaint without explanation) is binding on Schaffel. See R. Weil & I Brown, California
28 3
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Practice Guide, Civil Procedure Before Trial § 6:708 (TRG 2005) (allegations in original
pleading that render the cause of action vulnerable cannot simply be omitted without explanation
from an amended pleading): “The policy against sham pleadings requires the pleader to explain
satisfactorily any such omission. Otherwise, the original defect ‘infects’ the subsequent
pleading as well. Le., the self-destructive allegations of the original pleading will be ‘read into’
the amended pleading . . . .”

Schaffel has never sued to rescind the accord and satisfaction pleaded in his original
complaint. He cannot do so now. First of all, the parties are too close to trial. Second, any such
claim would be barred by the statute of limitations. The amount owed to Schaffel for producing
the Fox documentaries is therefore either the $482 000 which defendanis’ accounting analysis
supports or, at most $500,000,l the sum Schaffel pleaded was still owed him pursuant to the
unrescinded accord and satisfaction Schaffel pleaded in his original complaint.

v
SCHAFFEL’S CLAIM FOR UNREIMBURSED LOANS AND EXPENSES

Schaffel’s main claim is for the unpaid fees for the Fox documentaries. Having decided
to sue for those monies, however, Schaffel decided to “up the ante” by “piling on” a spurious
claim that Mr. Jackson somehow owed him money for supposed loans or advances from the
NVE accounts and/or for Jackson-related expenses incurred through NVE,

This additional claim is expressed in Schaffel’s Second Cause of Action for breach of a
series of individual oral contracts, one for each disbursement or “loan”; Schaffel’s Third Cause
of Action for money lent or paid; Schaffel’s Fourth Cause of Action for an account stated; and
Schaffel’s Fifth Cause of Action for unjust enrichment.

All four of these causes of action are based on allegations that { 1} Schaffel and NVE, on
numerous occasions, “loaned [money] directly to Jackson or made payments on behalf of
Jackson”; (2) “in each instance, prior to making the loan or f)&ying the expense on behalf of
defendants, plaintiffs and defendants entered into an oral agreement that defendants would repay
the foans or reimburse plaintiffs for the expenses incurred on defendants’ behalf”; and (3)

defendants failed to pay. See First Amended Complaint, Paras. 31, 34.

4
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S I N T VI

The source of the monies that went into the NVE accounts has been described above and
1s not expected to be the subject of controversy at trial. It is what happened to the money
afterwards that is in issue. Schaffel alleges that he used some of the money from the NVE
accounts to pay the legitimate business expenses of various projects for Mr. Jackson and that he
advanced the rest of it to Mr. Jackson in cash ~ $100,000 here, $250,000 there, and so forth.
Schaffel claims that at the end of the day the combined total of the expenses of the Jackson
projects plus “cash out” to Mr. Jackson exceeded the monies Mr. Jackson had put into the NVE
accounts by about $2.1M and that Mr. Jackson therefore owes him that much.

A%
MR. JACKSON’S DEFENSE TO THESE CLAIMS

Schaffel will be unable to prove his reimbursement claim at trial. Defendants have
retained a forensic accountant who has gone through the books and records provided by Schaffel
in discovery. Those books and records show (and Mr. Jackson’s expert witness will testify) that
Schaffel allocated to Mr. Jackson expenses which should have been allocated to Schaffel
himself; that many of the advances and “loans” to Mr. Jackson never occurred; and that Schaffel
frequently withdrew money from the NVE accounts for his own benefit. This expert,
incidentally, has not yet formulated his final opinion (and may not be able to do so until trial
because Schaffel has thus far improperly refused to produce certain bank records which will be
subpoenaed for trial). His conclusion thus far, however, is that Schaffel is owed nothing. To the
contrary, it appears that Schaffel is indebted to Mr. Jackson.

The expert testimony will be corroborated by the testimony of persons close to Schaffel
who have personal knowledge of Schaffel’s book-keeping practices and many of the transactions
in question.

The merits aside, it is also clear that many of Schaffel's contrived reimbursement claims
are barred by the two year statute of imitations for oral contracts.

Vi
SUMMARY OF SCHAFFEL’S CLAIMS

Schaffel’s original complaint and his first amended complaint contain only (1) aclaim

5
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for unpaid fees for the Fox documentaries and (2) a claim for unrepaid loans and unreimbursed
business expenses in connection with a variety of projects, including the “What More Can I
Give” charity single. Although expressed in five causes of action, these are the only claims
Schaffel has made.

As noted above, the evidence at trial will show that Schaffel is owed nothing for the
claimed “loans™ and the supposedly unreimbursed “expenses.” The evidence at trial will also
show that Schaffel is owed at most $500,000 for the Fox documentaries.

A7
SCHAFFEL MAY TRY TO ADD ADBITIONAL CLAIMS
BUT SHOULD NOT BE PERMITTED TO DO SO
AT THIS LATE STAGE OF THE CASE

Schaffel has no other claims. Not only do both the original complaint and the first
amended complaint expressly state only a claim for expense and loan reimbursements and a
claim for unpaid Fox documentary fees, but Schaffel swore under oath that these were his sole
claims when he gave a deposition in February of this year. See Exhibit A hereto (excerpt from
the deposition of F. Marc Schaffel taken February 10, 2006 at Page 114, Lines 8-15) (testifying
that “all the monies™ he was “claiming in this lawsuit™ derived from (1) the failure of Mr.
Jackson to reimburse him for expenses and (2) “the monies owed on the Fox TV shows™).

Defendants are belaboring this point because, despite his sworn deposition testimony and
the clear language of both of his complaints in this action, there are indications that Schaffel
may attempt to “pile on” yet another unmeritorious ¢laim in an effort to increasz the value of his
lawsuit.

In discovery, Schaftel produced a photocopy of one page of what he said was a two page
contract. A copy is attached to this brief as Exhibit B. Schaffel claimed that this document was
agreed to by him and Mr, Jackson. He said he did not have the second page but claimed that it
only contained signatures. He did not say whose signatures or in what capacity,

Defendants believe Schaffel is going to try to use this document to claim that Mr.

Jackson owes him additional money in unpaid salary for serving as President of Schaffel’s own

6
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company, NVE. The court will note that in Paragraph 1 of this document, it states that: “For the
services of President of Neverland Valley Entertainment, F. Marc Schaffel shall receive a salary
of $375,000 per year. This shall be guaranteed for a period of at least three years.” Schaffel
testified at his deposition that he only took $75,000 in salary from NVE during 2001 and nothing
in 2002 or 2003. Defendants anticipate that Schaffel will seek to introduce this photocopy of an
alleged part of an alleged agreement at trial in support of a claim against Mr. Jackson for the
allegedly remaining unpaid salary. [See Exhibit C — Schaffel’s response to Mr. Jackson’s
supplemental interrogatory served May 1, 2006, listing as additional damages $1,125,000 for
unpaid salary through April 2004 and $375,000 per year thereafter (for a total of more than
$1,875,000), despite no such claim having ever been pleaded.]

There are several reasons why this latest anticipated “pile on™ attempt must be rejected.

First, Schaffel has never pleaded a cause of action for breach of this so-called agreement
or for unpaid “salary.”

Second, Schaffel has already amended his complaint once. In doing so, he did not add a
claim for breach of this so-called agreement or for unpaid “salary.”

Third, Schaffel testified under oath at his deposition only two months ago that he was
suing only for reimbursement for expenses and unpaid Fox documentary fees; nothing else.
Such testimony trumps the interrogatory responses prepared by his lawyers.

Fourth, the document in question upon which Schaffel would base any such claim is

entitled “Work Agreement with Neverland Valley Entertainment.” That is, it is Schaffel’s

“work agreement” with his own single-member limited liability company, NVE. It does not
even purport to be an employment agreement with Mr. Jackson or any of Mr. Jackson’s entities,
Fifth, the document does not say that Mr. Jackson or the other defendants will pay

Schaffel’s “salary.” To the contrary, the document itself makes clear that if there is any person

or entity obligated to pay Schaffel’s $375,000 per year salary it is NVE. Not only is that the

way these things always happen — companies pay the salaries of their officers and employees —
but throughout the document it is made clear that the company is the obligor with respect to

President Schaffel. See, e.g., Paragraph 2 (“Mr Schaffel shall receive a Company vehicle. . . .

7
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The Company shall pay all the expenses related to this vehicle™); Paragraph 3 (Mr. Schaffel shall
receive full health benefits which the Company shall pay for”); Paragraph 4 (Mr. Schaffel shall
receive a cellular telephone, or continue to use a cellular telephone he current [sic] has and the
Company shall pay the bill”); and so on.

There is only one reference in Exhibit B to Mr. Jackson paying anything, and that
appears in Paragraph 7, where (after stating that the Company will cover Mr. Schaffel’s
business-related travel expenses) the document states: “Any monies outlaid on behalf of Mr.
Schaffel personally for the company for any purpose shall be paid back to Mr. Schaffel from the
Company, or by Michael Jackson.” That is, Mr. Jackson was supposedly guaranteeing

reimbursement of Schaffel’s out-of-pocket business expenses if NVE failed to do so. That is all

there is. Nowhere in this document is there anything about Mr. Jackson or his co-defendants
paying Schaffel’s salary from NVE or guaranteeing that salary if NVE did not pay it.

Sixth, any such promise or guarantee would in any event be twice barred by the statute of
frauds, which requires that (1) a promise to pay the debt of another and (2) contracts of more
than one year in duration must be in writing and signed by the party to be charged. Civil Code §
1624. Schaffel is unable to produce a signed version of Exhibit A {or even a complete copy,
including the signature page).

Seventh, Exhibif B violates what used to be called the “best evidence rule.” It is an
incomplete, unsigned phdtocopy. Schaffel was in possession of the original and has failed to
produce it, claiming he cannot find it. Mr. Jackson has testified that he has no recollection of
ever signing Exhibit B, although the scribble on the side was his initial, and that he could not
recall ever agreemg that Mr. Schaffel would be paid a salary of $375,000 per year. See
Deposition of Michael Jackson taken September 23, 2005 at Page 105, Line 12 Page 106, Line
13 [Exhibit D hereto].

- Of course, there 1s no way to know, given that Schaffel is proffering a photocopy,
whether the scribbled initial appears on the originél or was “cut and pasted” from another
document onto Exhibit B using a photocopier, Under the circumstances, a genuine dispute

exists as to the authenticity of Exhibit B,

8
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Moreover, a genuine dispute exists as to Exhibit B’s contents. [t is impossible to tell
how many pages the original really contained or what the signature lines looked like. For
instance, if it really was signed, did the signers sign in their individual capacity or on behalf of
the LLC? There is no way to know, and therefore no way to know to what extent this photocopy
of a partial document was genuine at all and if it was, whether it was a contract by Schaffel with
Mr. Jackson, or by Schaffel with one of the corporate defendants, or by Schaffel with Schaffel’s
one-member LLC, NVE, as its name states - “Work Agreement with Neverland Valley
Entertainment”.

Exhibit B is therefore barred by Evidence Code §§ 1521, 1523,

Finally, Mr. Jackson terminated all of his business relationships with Mr. Schaffel for
cause in mid-November 2001, when Mr. Jackson learned that Schaffel’s “other” job was
producing homosexual pornography. (Schaffel admitted at his deposition that he had produced
hundreds of gay pornographic videos.} Obviously, Mr. Jackson could not afford to be publicly
associated with a gay pornographer in connection with the release of a record and had every
right to terminate his relationship with Schaffel for Schaffel’s failure to disclose this material
fact. If Schaffel is permitted to amend his complaint to sue for unpaid salary, Mr. Jackson will
defend on the ground that any contract he had with Mr. Schaffel was validly terminated four and
a half years ago and on the ground that the salary claim is really a wrongful termination claim
and barred by the statute of limitations.

vinl
SUMMARY REGARDING NO ADDITIONAL CLAIMS

For all of the foregoing reasons, it would be grossly unfair to permit Schaffel to enhance
his claims against Mr. Jackson at the efeventh hour to include a claim for unpaid salary from
NVE (or for that matter. any other unpaid “benefits” to which he may argue he was entitled
under Exhibit B).

Schaffel has never alleged a cause of action for any such relief and motion for leave to
amend Schaffel’s complaint to include such a claim would be clearly untimely and prejudicial to

defendants. Defendants have not conducted discovery into the bona fides of Exhibit B or the
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validity of the termination of their business relationship with Schaffel because Schaffel’s
complaint did not contain a cause of action for breach of Exhibit B. Given the serious questions
as to Exhibit B’s authenticity and the large amount of money Schaffel has recently said he is
owed for breach of it, defendants would need an opportunity to (1) re-depose Schaffel; (2) serve
interrogatories seeking the identities of additional witnesses on the issue of when and how Mr.
Jackson learned of Schaffel’s gay porn career; (3) depose those people; (4) seek additional
documents from Schattel; and (5) subpoena the records of the Santa Barbara County Sheriff
regarding items seized from Schaffel’s home pursuant to a search warrant in connection with the
criminal prosecution of Mr. Jackson. In additfon, since Exhibit B was undoubtedly created on a
computer, defendants would need to conduct a forensic review of Schaffel’s computers, which
would reveal the time and date the document was created, what its actual content was, and what
revisions were made to it and when, in order to establish that it is a phony, after the fact
fabrication created by Schaffel in an effort to enhance his claims. Without affording defendants
such an opportunity, allowing Schaffel to amend his complaint now would be a gross abuse of
discretion. See Magpali v. Farmers Group, Inc., 48 Cal. App. 4th 471, 488 (1996) (leave to
amend complaint on the eve of trial properly denied where amendment would have necessitated
continuance and additional discovery).
IX
MR. JACKSON'S CROSS-COMPLAINT AGAINST SCHAFFEL

Defendants have cross-complained against Schaffel for an accounting, for breach of
fiduciary duty, fraud, conversion, and an accounting,

At trial, Mr. Jackson will prove that Schaffel abused the trust that had been placed in him
by Mr, fackson, by misappropriating expensive artwork belonging to Mr. Jackson, utilizing
funds entrusted to him by Mr. Jackson to benefit himself, while providing false books of
account, and self-dealing with respect to Mr. Jackson’s charity single, “What More Can I Give.”

Only the latter disgraceful incident will be discussed here in aﬁy detail, as Mr. Jackson’s
recovery on that one claim alone will more than offset the $482,000 balance owed to Schaffel on

the Fox documentaries.

10
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X
THE WHAT MORE CAN I GIVE FIASCO

We alluded earlier to the song “What More Can I Give,” which Mr. Jackson wrote and
copyrighted in 1998. Schaffel undertook to produce a charity single of that recording for Mr.
Jackson. Indeed, a large portion of the expenses incurred through NVE (roughly $2.8M) were
attributable to efforts to get that single produced and released.

On August 13, 2001, Schaffel and Mr. Jackson signed a contract regarding the What
More Can I Give deal. The testimony is in dispute as to whether Schaffel, who was by then
acting as Mr. Jackson’s agent, misled Mr. Jackson as to the contents of the contract before Mr.
Jackson signed it.

A copy of the August 13, 2001 agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit E. As the court
can see, Paragraph 4 of the contract purported to grant Schaffel certain rights to exploit the
master recording, while Paragraph 3 reqﬁired Schaffel to pay all of the costs of the production of
the master.

It 1s undisputed that Schaffel did not personally pay all of the $2.8M costs of the
production. Those costs were paid out of the NVE accounts with money that came from Mr.
Jackson. If Schaffel succeeds in convincing the jury that Exhibit E is valid and that he
(Schaffel) held any rights under Paragraph 4, he is going to have to reimburse Mr. Jackson
$2.8M pursuant to Paragraph 3. That will wipe out Mr. Schaffe}’s $482.000 claim for unpaid
fees on the Fox documentaries, resulting in a net $2.3M judgment in Mr. Jackson’s favor. If, on
the other hand, Schafiel does not convince the jury that Paragraph 4 gave him the rights he
ciaims, he is going to have to account to Mr. Jackson for all monies Schaffel received by
exploiting those claimed rights.

It is undisputed that the single was never released but that Schaffel secretly entered into a

- deal with a Japanese group called “Music Fighters” to sell his purported rights under Paragraph _

4 of the August 13, 200! contract for a large sum of money.
Mr. Jackson will show at trial that Schaffel received several hundred thousand dollars

from Music Fighters while bound by fiduciary obligations to Mr. Jackson. Schaffel did not

i1
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account to Mr. Jackson for any of this money. Some, if not all, of those funds were used by
Schaffel as part payment on an expensive home in Calabasas. |

Mr. Jackson is entitled to those monies or, in the alternative, to impress a constructive
trust on the real property purchased by Schaffel with those monies. The amount in question
exceeds Schaffel’s claim for unpaid fees on the Fox documentaries, and standing alone
guarantees an overall verdict in favor of defendants/cross-complainants. |

Finally, Mr. Jackson’s cross-complaint seeks an accounting, which is undoubtedly an
appropriate vehicle for sorting out the competing claims of the parties. Pursuant to the “equity
first” rule, the court may wish to consider whether the matter ought to be referred to a referee for
an accounting before trying the parties’ “legal claims” to a jury, since the accounting might well
resolve most of the major issues in the case. Connell v. Bowes, 19 Cal. 2d 870, 872 (1942).

X1
CONCLUSION

This trial brief does not discuss all of defendants and cross-complainants’ contentions.
Only some of the most salient issues have been discussed. As the court can see, however,
defendants and cross-complainants anticipate an overall judgment in their favor.
Dated: May 26, 2006 Thomas C. Mundell

John L. Wollman
Mundell, Odium & Haws, LLP

c

24l .

25
26
27
28
MUNDELL,

Jowom &
Haws,LLP

By: i

Thomas C. Mundell

Attorneys for defendants and Cross-
complainants Michael Jackson, MJJ
Productions, Inc. and Fire Mountain
Services, LLC
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L3

to paragraph seven?
A, Yes.
MR. MUNDELL: Okay.

MR. KING: Let'g take a break.

(Recess. )

Q. BY MR. MUNDELL: Eack on the record. 2All
right.

Roughly, how much of what you are claiming in
this lawsuit derives from the failure of the company and
Mr. Jackson to reimburseme you for expenses pursuant to
paragraph seven of Exhibit Three?

A. All the monies except the monies owed on the
FOX TV shows for Royalty.

Q. Okay. Now paragraph seven, also, refers to
Michael Jackson's quote "Special secret project" closed
gquote,

Did you -- and it says you are going to set up
a Trust for that, did you dc so?

A, I believe the paperwork was done for that, yes.

Q. Okay. But beyond the paperwork, do you know if
anything else was done to establish the Trust for the
secret project?

A. No.

cXHIBIT A* PAGE 13 page 114

JUU——- L ]



Work Agreement with Neverland Valley Entertainment
June 28, 2001
i. For the servicey of Presidant of Neverland Yaliey Enerainment, £, Mar Schaffe! shali

receive & saiery of $373,000.00 per yenr, This shali be Suarantead for s period of at least three
yeara, Afer tha period, & new congaes shall ¢ negotiated. This shail be rezroactive from
May 1, 200!,

Mr. Schaffe! shall recejve 3 company vehicle valued ar no mare than $50,000.00; The
company shall pay !l the Fxpenses relited t this vehicle, fr is Mr. Schaffel’s choice as to
whoiher the vehicle is purchased o iensed, [f the vehicle i Purchesed it she be titled 20 My
Schaffe! after the tax benefits from the company are decided,

Mr. Schaffel shaii receive full hesith wedizal benefits whica the sompany shal, say for, or
have the option to continye &ry already existing plan and the cempany sha! reimburse Mr,
Schaffel or pay directly for the premiumy,

M. Schaffel shall recerve 3 coliviar telephoas, or continue 1 yee 2 esilular iolephione he
¢uivent bes and the company shap P8y the bill, or reimbursa My SchafTel for payments on the
bill.

Mr. Schaffal shail be upplied & Laztop computer and » PC =omputer at the companies
expense which shall remain his propenty.

Mr. Schaffel shal} slsgo msceive  points on the single "WMCIG™, of whick | pomt wi'l be
assigned to Rudy Provencio Per & 3eparaie agreement. Mr. Provencia's WOrk Sgreemest shall
be d-awn up by Mr. Sehatfe, ead Mr. Schaffel shaii ve sutsorized 1o sign on behalf of the
company. Mr. Schaffe! shall also receive 5 Separnls fee for his servicss on this Project begides
the compensation as described ir this agreement, the fee is nO: 1o be icss than $750.000.60.
Mr. Scaafel ahalf have i) travel re:ated 10 the corepany businass peic for by the COmpETY By

Mr, Scha e} persanally for the cormpany for Eay purpese shal! o0 paic sask i M. Sciafle!
Bom the company, or by Michael Jackyon, At Michae! Jackson's request Mr. Schaffel sgrees
i 32t 1D the trust for Mizhas| Jackson's “Spects’ Secpst Projecy”.
Mr. Scbaffe! shall be available for Michael Jscison for any ssiswnce ia any projests as
needed outtide of the direct compxny business,
Mr. Schaffe duties shal] aiso includs the running of the Swdic 52 Neveriand Valizy Ranch
ana the oversesing of the project as well ng the additions purpezed tooine Property Lo seit the
Studio as profy generating entity for Weverland Valley Entertainment,
Mr., Schafie! shall be suthorized 1o obtain a 3pace for an ofice for the 4 based portion of the
susiness not 1o exceed $16,000,00 per montk. If not lass tkan a two Year lease is available g
residential lease may be substituied &1 the same 2n:uunt or under. An cffice shatl be providsd
& the Neveriand Vailey Ranch, durirg the time of construction o7 the studio peojeet unrii such
lime as permanen: offices for the company can be buik in the fezility, Al reisted eRpeLses o
this effice shail be paid by tae COMPany &y weall,
Axy additional bancs the company brings in or signs, sha)l have o separe;s mAnagemeny
Rgreeroent detween the indivicvals, F. Mare Sehaffel, Rudy Frovecein, ang Michast fackson,
with the proceedy from the menagemen; agreement being split, Michae! Jscksan 0%, £
Mare Schaffel, and Rugdy Provencio spliting the Fermaining 50%. Al Compaiies’ net profin
afler expenses, from the bands shali go 1oward Micbas! Jucksos's “Special Secrer Frojecr, f
Mr. Sensffel shall receive an additiona! banus of no more than 10% of t3e profit of the
Publishing (Children's bocks), ard relpteg Projects as discussed The fEmaining 90% of the
proceeds from the profity shail Ro o Michsel fackson's “Specigl Servet Broleeee,
Mr. Schafle! shal] be suthorized 2 hire an assistan immedimeli and oat themg through 3
EU"}F’”? payroll. Axy séditiona! smployees that are aceded shalf be hired On 1 Va8 pesdagh l
BSiS. '
Mr. Schaffel 3hai be suthorzed t siz and Degotisle any agreement o behalf sfthe

i
/

company end shall have fyll euthorizution 1o meke By decision relsted 1o pre companies
business; including sl the dey to day operstions, for all the Prejess cuently being pur
‘ogether as well 2y any Mizhae| JBCkson reguesty /
Ve 4
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HowaRrD E. KING, EsQ., STATE BAR No. (077012
SETH MILLER, ESQ., STATE BAR NoO. 175130
1900 AVENUE OF THE STARS, 25TH FLOOR

Los ANGELES, CALIFORNIA 90067-4506
E-MaIL: MILLER@KHPBLAW.COM
TELEPHONE: (310)282-8989

FaCsiMILE:  (310) 282-8903

Attommeys for Plaintiffs

SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA
FOR THE COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES, WEST DISTRICT
UNLIMITED CIVIL CASE

F. MARC SCHAFFEL, individually and d/b/a | Case No. SC083501
NEVERLAND VALLEY ENTERTAINMENT; |[Hon. Jacqueline A. Connor, Department “I”]
F. MARC SCHAFFEL PRODUCTIONS, LLC, a ‘

California limited liability company, Complaint filed: November 16, 2004
Plaintiffs,
PLAINTIFF F. MARC SCHAFFEL’S
Vs. RESPONSE TO DEFENDANT MICHAFL
JACKSON’S SUPPLEMENTAL

MICHAEL JACKSON; MJJ PRODUCTIONS, |INTERROGATORY
INC., a California corporation, FIRE
MOUNTAIN SERVICES, LLC, a Nevada
limited liability company, and DOES 1 through
10, inclusive,

Defendants.

AND RELATED CROSS ACTION.

PROPOUNDING PARTY: Defendant MICHAEL JACKSON

RESPONDING PARTY: Plaintiff F. MARC SCHAFFEL d/b/a NEVERLAND
VALLEY ENTERTAINMENT

SET NO.; ONE

Plaintiff F. MARC SCHAFFEL, individually and d/b/a NEVERLAND VALLEY

ENTERTAINMENT, hereby responds to the supplemental interrogatory of defendant MICHAEL

30035.060\69516.1 H
PLAINTIFF F. MARC SCHAFFEL'S RESPONSE TO DEFENDANT MICHAEL JACKSON’S

SUPPLEMENTAL INTERROGATORY 1 5
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(“Defendant™), as follows:

GENERAL OBJECTIONS

1. Responding party objects to the Supplemental Interrogatory to the extent it secks
information that: (a) is not relevant to the claims or defenses of any party or to the subject matter
involved in the pending action; or (b) that is neither admissible in evidence itself nor reasonably
calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence.

2. Responding party objects to the Supplemental Interrogatory to the extent it is
overly broad as to time or scope, unduly burdensome, likely to cause substantial and unwarranted
expense, or seek to compel responding party to conduct a search beyond the scope of permissible
discovery as contemplated by the Code of Civil Procedure or other applicable law.

3. Responding party objects to the Supplemental Interrogatory to the extent it seeks
information in Defendant’s possession, custody, or control or that is equally or more readily
available to Defendant, including information that is a matter of public record.

4, Responding party objects to the Supplemental Interrogatory to the extent it seeks
information protected by the attomey-client privilege, work-product doctrine, Constitutional right
to privacy, or other applicable privileges or doctrines. Nothing contained in this response is
intended as, nor shall in any way be deemed, a waiver of any applicable privilege or doctrine.

5. Responding party objects to the Supplemental Interrogatory to the extent it seeks
discovery of conﬁ&ential or proprietary financial or other business information and/or trade secrets
of plaintiffs or third parties.

6. In responding to these Supplemental Interrogatory, and in producing documents in
Ttesponse to the Supplemental Interrogatory, responding party does not intend to and are not in any
way waiving objections based on:

(a) relevance;
(b} bufdéﬁ éﬁ;iﬂoppression;
(c)  ambiguity;

(d)  attomey-client, work-product, privacy, financial confidentiality, or

3005.060\68516.1 %
PLAINTIFF F. MARC SCHAFFEL’S RESPONSE TO DEFENDANT MICHAEL JACKSON'S

SUPPLEMENTAL INTERROGATORY 1 ﬁ
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(e) any other applicable privilege or doctrine.

7. These responses are based on information and documents currently available to
responding parties and of which they are presently aware. Responding party’s discovery and
investigation are ongoing and may yield additional responsive documents or information.
Responding party reserves the right to supplement or modify its responses to these Supplemental
Interrogatory.

Subject to and without waiving the foregoing general objections, incorporated by reference

into each of the responses set forth below, responding party responds to the Supplemental

Interrogatory as follows:
RESPONSES TO FORM INTERROGATORIES

SUPPLEMENTAL INTERROGATORY NO. 1:

Please state in detail, with respect to each form interrogatory and specially prepared

interrogatory previously served on you in this action, any and all later-acquired information

supplementing, modifying, or otherwise bearing on any previous answers you made in response

to those interrogatories.

RESPONSE TO SUPPLEMENTAL INTERROGATORY NO. 1:

Responding party incorporates by reference as if set forth in full herein each general and
specific objection asserted by responding party in his responses to each form interrogatory and
specially prepared interrogatory previously served on responding party in this action. Subject to
and without waiver of the foregoing objections, including those previously served, responding
party supplements, amends, and/or modifies his prior interrogatory responses, as follows:

Plaintiff F. Marc Schaffel’s Response to Defendant Fire Mountain Services, LLC’s First

Set of Form Interrogatories,‘at response to Form Interrogatory No. 9.1(c), is modified, as follows:

- Response to Form Interrogatory 9.1

{c}  Atleast $2,150,789 for the loans and expenses, and at least $925,000 for the two

Fox specials; approximately $94,246.32 in legal fees and costs; salary under the work agreement

3005.060:69516.1
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of $1,125,000 through April 30, 2004, and $375,000 per year thereafier; interest on the foregoing

in the approximate amount of $1,131,000.
DATED: May 1, 2006 KING, HOLM™ES, PATERNO & BERLINER, LLP
By: : %\ M( (‘-/
SETH MILLER
Attorneys for Plaintiffs
3005.0609515.1 . 4
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PROOF OF SERVICE

STATE OF CALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES

I am employed in the County of Los Angeles, State of California. 1 am over the age of 18
and not a party to the within action; my busi_ness address is 1900 Avenue of the Stars, 25th F loor,

Los Angeles, California 90067-4506.

1On May 1, 2006, I served the following document(s) described as PLAINTIFF F. MARC

SCHAFFEL’S RESPONSE TO DEFENDANT MICHAEL JACKSON’S SUPPLEMENTAL
INTERROGATORY on all interested parties in this action by placin g true copies thereof

addressed as follows:
See Attached Service List

) BY MAIL, to the addressee(s) indicated below, enclosed in sealed envelope(s): I am
“readily familiar” with the firm’s practice of collection and processing correspondence for
mailing. Under that practice it would be deposited with the U.S. postal service on that same day
with postage thereon fully prepaid at Los Angeles, California in the ordinary course of business, I
am aware that on motion of the party served, service is presumed invalid if postal cancellation date
or postage meter date is more than one day after date of deposit for mailing in affidavit,

[} BY FEDERAL EXPRESS, to the addressee(s) indicated below, enclosed in sealed
envelope(s): Iam “readily familiar” with the firm’s practice of collection and processing items for
Federal Express delivery. Under that practice it would be deposited at Los Angeles, California, in
an envelope or package designated by Federal Express in a facility regularly maintained by
Federal Express or delivered to a courier or driver authorized to receive documents on its behalf

with delivery fees paid or provided for.

0 BY PERSONAL SERVICE, to the addressee(s) indicated below, enclosed in sealed
enveiope(s): Icaused ALL STAR ATTORNEY SERVICE to deliver such envelope(s) by hand to
the office of the addressee(s), as per the attached.

O BY FACSIMILE, to the addressee(s) indicated below. I caused the foregoing document(s)
to be served by facsimile transmission from sending facsimile machine number (310) 282-8903 on
each interested party at the facsimile machine telephone number shown. Each transmission was
reported as complete and without error. A transmission report was properly issued by the sending
facsimile machine for each interested party served.

Executed on May 1, 2006, at Los Angeles, California.

3} (State) I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California
that the above is true and correct.

19

3005.060\51479.1 ' EXHIBIT ¢ PAGE




ki

Michael Sydow, Esg.

Sydow McDonald Kaiser & Ahmed, LLP
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(713) 571-8000 Telephone
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SERVICE LIST

Thomas C. Mundell, Esq.

John L. Woliman, Esq.

Mundell, Odlum & Haws, LLP
2829 Townsgate Road, Suite 320
Westlake Village, CA 91361
(805) 446-2221 Telephone

(805) 446-2251 Facsimile
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SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA
FOR THE COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES, WEST DISTRICT

UNLIMITED CIVIL CASE

F. MARC SCHAFFEL, individually and } Case No. SC083501
d/b/a NEVERLAND VALLEY ) [Hon. Jacgueline
ENTERTAINMENT; F. MARC SCHAFFEL } A Conor Dept "I")
PRODUCTIONS, LLC, a California
limited liability company,

Plaintiffs,

vs.

}
}
)
)
)
}
}
MICHAEL JACKSON; MJJ PRODUCTIONS, }
INC., a California corporation, )
FIRE MOUNTAIN SERVICES, LLC, }
a Nevada limited company, and DOES )
i through 10, inclusive, )
)
}

Defendants.

Deposition of MICHAEL JOSEPH JACKSON
held on Friday,23rd September 2005
at the Dorchester Hotel, Park lLane,
London W1la 2HJ, England
10:37 am-6:38 pm

Atkinson-Baker, Inc.
500 Nerth Brand Boulevard, Third floor
Glendale, Californica 91203

¥iie no. 9F07RBEA
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Page 102

Q. That's your voice on that?

A, Yes.

Q. And who's Nikki?

A. Nikki was one of the secretaries at Neverland at
the time.

Q. Does this refresh your recollection that Marc
indeed was working on a possible development of

Page 104

A. Yes. :

Q. Are you able to tell whether you were under the
influence to drugs or alcohol when you left that
message?

A. No. Because I know my history and I stay up late
doing music. I probably was tired.

Q. Does this refresh your recollection that Marc was
taking a pretty active role on your behalf trying

O 00 ~F oh N b ) B

film type production facilities at Neverland ranch?
A. It refreshes my recollection because after coming

to the ranch he had all these big ideas that we

could do housing and recording studio and film

to get money out of Jive Records?
10 A No, ne.
11 Q. When the message says there is really -- "there is

studios, make our videos up there and that was his ii f’:g:{et;;zgw Ze: rIe ;:::il:g‘:g[ to get”. Do you know
i just refreshing him to remember what ;
idea and [ was just refreshing 14 A. Probably a house purchase here.

he had told me as I remember,

Q. OK. Well, you encouraged him to pursue these 13

Q. Did you want to ask your lawyer something, I saw

projects, right? 16 you gesture?
A. Yes. Ithink that one came from him. 17 A. No. Its OK. -
Q. But it was your hope that these projects might be 18 Q. Did you ever form a company with Marc Schaffel? “
beneficial to you and come to fruition, right. 19 A. Form acompany with Marc Schaffel?
A. Yes. 20 Q. Yes.
Q. OK. Why were your going to have Nikki call Mare | 21 A. Not that I can recall.
directly in connection with that? 22 Q. Iwill give you exhibit 25 and ask you first j Just
A. Because Mar said he wanted to work closely with |23 if that's your signature on the second page under
Kicky about -- I think it was some typography at 24 the second signature? ,
Page 103 Page 105
1 the ranch for aerial shots and space so, I think 1 Document marked for identification as Exhibit 25 .
2 that's why he needed her. I was just following up 2 E’:
3 his idea on that as ] remember. A. Looks like it. 3
4 Q. OK. Atone point in time did you ask Marc to help 3 Q Irs?
5 you in connection with the house in Orlando you 4 A Yes
5 wanted to buy? 5 Q. Does this refresh your recollection that you
7 A. Vaguely I remember, could be very true. ;} entered into a limited liability company with Marc
. . Schaffel?
8 Q. Anddid you have Marc £o gown to Orlando with Henry 8 A. No it doesn'.
9 Aubrey and Angel Casio to look at the house? 9 Q. I'mgoing to hand you exhibit 26,
10 A, That could be true. i10 A. OK
11 Q. Were you hoping to get 7 million dollars from Jive f 11 Document marked for ldentiﬁcatlon as Exhibit 26
12 records to pay for that house? )
13 A Idon'tknow. Could be, Idon't know. | Q. It'sentitled, "Work agreement with Neverland
14 Q. OK I'm going toplay another phone recording for f13 Valley Entertainment”. First [ ask you if those
15 you which I going to mark as exhibit 24. |14 are your initials on the right hand side of the
16 Document marked for identification as Exhibit 24 |15 page?
17 - {Audio recarding played) | 16 A, Yes.
13 | 17 Q. Do you have ever recall seeing this agreement, and
Q. You were on the East Coast when you left that ; ig tak;:iz:mzﬁm you need t;’ look at it?
19 message from Mr Schaffel weren't you? 20 (Proceedings were paused)
20 A. I don'tknow where | s ¢ Q. Have you had the opportunity to look at that Mr
21 Q. Do youremember leaving that message? a1 Jackson?
22 A No. 122 A Yes.
23 Q. From the sound of your voice in that message -- f23 Q. Do you recall signing this document?
24 that was your voice in a message, correct? i 24 A. No.

]
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Page 106

Page 108}

1 Q. Do yourecall forming an entity with Mr Schaffel 1 nonetheless for performing the song?
2 called Neverland Valley Entertainment? 2 A, ldon't emember.
3 A No 3 Q. What portion of the proceeds from "What More Can |
4 Q. Does the name Neverland Valley Entertainment mean 4 Give?" did you intend to go to charity?
5 anything to you as you sit here today? 5 A. Idon't remember, I don't remember.
6 A. Ihave heard of it vaguely. 6 Q. Did you intend that any of the proceeds go to
7 Q. Inwhatcontext? 7 charity?
8 A. IthinkI have used that name before so I don't 8 A. Ofcourse I would expect, yes.
] know, pertaining to what project? Neverland Valley 5 Q. When you say of course, I don't know that Why do
10 Entertainment, of course. 10 you say of course?
11 Q. Do you recall agreeing that Mr Schaffel be paid a 11 A, Ifitisa charity record, of course,
12 salary of $375,000 a year? 12 Q. Ifitisacharity record does that mean, like, 10
13 A. Nol'msorry, Idon't. 13 per cent of the proceeds go to charity or 100 per
14 Q. That's OK. Do you recall that Mr Schaffel was 14 cent?
15 entitled to receive a company vehicle valued at no 15 A. Idon'tknow,Idon't know,
16 more than $80,000? 16 Q. With respect to "What More Can I Give?", who was
17 A. No. 17 going to make the decision as to how much of the
18 Q. Do yourecall ever promising Mr Schaffel he could 18 proceeds when to charity?
19 receive a car for services he was performing on 19 A. Tdon't think Marc came up with splits and all
20 your behalf? 20 those things.
21 A No. 21 Q. Why would Mar come up with the splits?
22 Q. Do you recall telling Mr Schaffe! or promising Mr 22 A. Idon't know,
23 Schaffel that he could receive points on the single 23 Q. Did Marc own the record? d
24 WMCIG which I know is an acronym for "What More Can { 24 A. Did he go on the record? d
Page 107 Page 109 ‘
i 1 Give?” 1 Q. Didhe own the record, was it his record? !
2 A, He should get a percentage from a chanty record? 2 A. Absolutely not his record.
3 Q. Do yourecall that? 3 Q. It was never his record?
4 A, [vaguely remember he was desperately wanting to 4 A. Never his record,
5 get points on the single and 1 didn't think it was 5 Q. It was your record?
6 a good idea. & A Iwroteit, ves.
7 Q. Because it was... 7 Q. And once your composition was embodied into a sound
8 A. Iamsomry. 8 recording, that was your sound recording, correct?
9 Q. Youdidn't think it was it was a good idea because 9 A. Exactly. That's why I didn't understand him asking
10 it was a charity record? 10 for points.
11 A. Ihave just never had anybody coming and, you know, ; 11 Q. Ijust want to make clear that Marc Schaffel, you
iz haphazardly ask for points on a song that [ have ; 12 would never aliow Marc Schaffe! to have ownership
13 written. ' 13 of that sound recording, would you?
14 Q. OK. Because "What More Can I Give?" was a chanty 14 A It would be ethically correct, no,
15 record did you expect anybody to make money you 1 > Q. Was it your expectation that whatever services Marc
16 have that record? 16 Schaffel performed for the recording of “What More
17 A. ldon't remember. 117 CanIGive? and the video shoot for "What More Can |
18 Q. Youdidn't expect to making money of that record * 18 I Give?" - let me start over because ! forgot
12 did you? 119 wherelstarted. Was it your expectation that
20 A, Tdon't remember. 120 whatever services Marc Schaffel performed in
21 Q. Let's step back, was that supposed to be a record 21 connection with “What More Can I Give?” would be
22 for charity? ; 22 done by Marc Schaffel for free?
23 A, Yes. That was the zdea 123 A, Ttwas my belief that - it was like a contractual
24 Q. Did you anticipate that you would receive a fee f 24

ebligation for him to pay for production of "What

EXHIBIT D™ PAGE

8 (Pages 106 to 109)
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AGREEMENT

This Agreement made a3 of August {_-"_‘;_, 2001, is between Mickael Jackson
*Astist™) and F. Mare Sehaffel Productions LLC by F, Mare Schaffe! (Producer).

A Wheress, Artist . » 2 writer end copyright owner of 2 musical campasition
entitled "What More Cant | Give™ ("Comnposition™). Artists desives to create o master
recording embodying the composition (the “Master”) and slso produce a musios)
audiovisual recording embodying the Mastar ("Music Video™, Artist further desires o
exploit the Master and Music Video and 1o donate all income derived Som the saies end
exploitation of such Master and Music Video 1o charities designated by Articr,

B, Whereas, Producer desires to produce and exploit the Master and Music
Video,

For good and valuable consideration, the receipt of which g hereby ackuowledged
by each party hereto, the partic acknowledge and agree to the following;

i Artist shal] exclusively own the copyright in and to Composition, and {s
entitled to all publishing income derived thercfrom.

2. Artist hereby grants o Producer the exclusive, perpemal right throughout
the world 1o produce the master recording erabodying the Cornposition end to inalude

satd Compbsition in the Music Video, Artist further grants Producer the cxclusive,

EXHIBIT E~PAGE 24
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perpetual right throughout the world toyexploit the Master and Music Video in my
manner and in any and all m~dia, whether riow known or hereafter devised,

3 Producer shall oe responsible for Prying all cosit in connection with the
production and exploitation of the Master and Music Video,

4. Artist bereby further agrees and acknowledges that Producer shall have
complete ownership of the Mastes and all versions therenf tecorded by Artist hereunder
from the inception of recording, including suy behind the scenes video and sudio for any
production of & "making of” video of film. and al} recodings and other reproductions
msde therefrom, togethar with the performances embodied therein and alf rights in and to
all of the foregoing, in perpetuity throughout the universe, including, without limitation,
the copyright, the right to re; ster claims 1o the copyright and eny and sli rights of
renewals and extensions of copyright, in and o the Master. As betwean Artist and
Producer, Astist acknowledpes that Prodncer shall. for purposes of copyright Ixw
throughout the wiivense, be considered the “owner” of the Master, and the Master shal}
constitute & “work wade for hire” under the United States copyright law,

L3 Producer shall be paid a producer fee and basic reyalty of four points
(3 points to Producer gnd | point 1o Rudy Provencio) in eonnection with the gross sales
and exploitation of the Master and Music Video, All of the net income (defined ag gross
income less all costs or fees incurred in connaction with the prodaction and exploitation

of the Master and Music Vig. , including any royalties

- e s ems R i e . = it B . e
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payable 10 persons or entities) shall be paid to Artist as

Understood and agreed to:

¥-(50f | A N
Date ! 13
Yo 1yo

Datwe

»
P
N

‘Lgh
F. MARC SCHAFFEL

4'1‘./

PRODY IONSALC

By: F. Marc Schaffel, Producer
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I, Susan H. Lipson, declare as follows:

I am employed in the County.of Ventura in the State of California. I am over the age of
eighteen years. Iam not a party to this action. My business address is 2829 Townsgate Road,
Suite 320, Westlake Village, California 91361.

On May 30, 2006, I served the within TRIAL BRIEF OF DEFENDANTS AND
CROSS-COMPLAINANTS MICHAEL JACKSON, MJJ PRODUCTIONS, INC. AND
FIRE MOUNTAIN SERVICES, LLC on the interested parties in this action by placing a true
copy thereof in an envelope addressed to said interested parties’ attorneys of record as follows:

Howard E. King, Esq.
KING, HOLMES, PATERNO & BERLINER LLP

1900 Avenue of the Stars, 25" Floor
Los Angeles, CA 90067-4506

and by then sealing said envelope and depositing same, with first class postage thereon fully
prepaid, in the mail at Westlake Village, California.
I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct and this declaration

1s executed on May 30, 2006 at Westlake Village, California.

Susan g 'Ligon !




